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lndependent Auditor's Report
To the Shareholders of MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

Imni
member
an association of
legallyindependent
accounting firms

partnering for success

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

0pinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED and its subsidiaries (the 'Group') as well as the
separale financial statements of MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED (the Company'), which comprise the consolidated and separate statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the consolidated and separate statement of proflt or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated and separate statement of changes in equity and consolidated and separate statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated and separate financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

ln our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Company and Group as
at June 30, 2022, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with lntemational Financial Repoftng
Standards (lFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit ln accordance with lnternational Standards on Auditing (lSAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are fufther
described in the Audito/s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements section of our reporl. We are

independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the lnternational Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of lhe financial statements of the

current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the flnancial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion

thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Head Office : Sadharan Bima Sadan (5th Floor) 24-25, Dilkusha Commercial Area, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh
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lnvestment ln Subsidiary - Consolldatlon and Stand-Alone

) We performed disclssions with management to understand their procedures and
processes to prepare mnsolidated financial statements as well as performing Gstatement
of prior year financial information.

> We reviewed supporting documentation to ensure the subsidiary met the criteria for
consolidation and management has applied the appropriate accounting standards.

) We reviewed the consolidation procedures performed by Management. We revrewed

management's elimination of intercompany balances to ensure accuracy and

appropriateness. We also reviewed the stand-alone financial numbers used to prepare the

consolidated statements to ensure clerical accuracy of consolidated financial statements"

) We reviewed Management's calculation of Non4ontrolling lnterest for all financial years

presented on the statementoffinancial position and ensured there were no clerical errors

and IFRS 10 was applied appropriately.

) We reviewed management disclosures and notes to the flnancial statements to ensure they
were accurate and adequate in regards to the requlrements of IFRS 10.

0ur audit procedures to mitigate the risk include:

The Company has recognized an assel worth BDT

79,800,000 in subsidiary Mir Securities Limited as at
30 June 2022. This investment represents 99.75%

ownership in the subsidiary as at 30 June 2022. There

are intercompany transactions taking place between

the two entities. Considering these factors, the overall

risk profile of this item was considered high and was

considered as a key audit matter.

Management has presented separate consolldated flnanclal statements as well audlted flnanclal statements.

KEYAUDIT MATTER How our audit addresses the Key Audit Matter

DHAKA
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Properg, Plant & Equlpment

The Company's consolidated PPE balance as at 30 June
2022wasBD'l 4.231 (BDT 4.076 Billion as at 30 June 2021).
This represents 17% of Total Assets of the Company (18%

of the Company as at 30 June 202'1). There is estimation
performed by management in regards to Asset useful life.
Based on the requirement of estimates and the fact that this
is a major asset category, this was determine to be a key
audit matter.

0ur audit procedures included

> obtain an understanding of Company's internal controls, systems and processes
around PPE.

) Performed discussions wilh management to understand their process of determinrng
asset useful life.

) We performed PPE additions procedures by obtaining supporting documentation,
invoices, and delivery information as well payments support.

) We performed reasonability of depreciation expenses charged by management to
ensure accuracy and occurrence.

) We performed discussions with management and performed other mrroborating
procedures to ensure management's assumptions around impairment were
reasonable.

> For disposals of assets, we obtained supporting documentation to determine the cost
and fair market value of the asset and then reviewed management's calculations to
ensure no clerical errors took place to calculate any related gains or losses.

Detalled notes regardlng Property, Plant & Equlpment has been lncluded in Note 4 and Note 4A.in the Financlal Statements

Revenue Recognitlon

Revenue of BDT 2.952 billion (3.242 billion for the year 30

June 2021) is recognized in tho income statemsnt of Mir
Akhter Hossain Limited for the current year.

This material item is subject to high inherent risk due to the
complexity of the systems and the presence of individual

customer contracts which are necessary for proper recording

and identification of revenue.

Against this background, the proper application of the

accounting standards is considered to be complex and to a

certain extent based on estimates and assumptions made by

management

Our audit procedures included:

towards adoption and implementation of IFRS 15.

Customer and Company to understand when control of the goods

manufactured transfer from Company to Customer.

documentation to ensure revenue recognition is occurring appropriately

documented appropriately

Details of Revenue Recognition are lncluded ln Note 20.00 and securlty Deposlts are lncluded in Note 7.00 to the Flnanclal Statements

lnformation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for information other than financial statements and audito/s report. The other infomation comprises of the Directo/s
Report, Corporate Governance Compliance Report and Management Discussion and Analysis. We expect to receive this other information after

the date of our auditor's report,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the

other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or othemise appears to be

materially misstated. lf, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of the auditois report, we

conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this

regard..

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and lnternal Controls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presenlation of the financial statements in accordance with lFRSs, the Companies Act

1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987 and olher applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company and Group's ability to continue as a going concern,

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends
to liquidate the Company or Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

OHAKA
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditols report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or enor and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with lSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We
also:

audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evrdence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstalemenl resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the ovemde of internal control.

circumstances,

made by management.

obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to

continue as a going concern. lf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our audito/s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

statements represent the underlying transactions and evenls in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We communicate with those

charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,

including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding

independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,

and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of

the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless

law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not

be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

ln accordance with the Companies Act 1 994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1 987 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Secunties

and Exchange Commission, we also report that:

of our audit and made due verification thereof;

Company so far as it appeared from our examinations of those books;

been properly reflected in the consolidated financial statements, We have expressed an unqualified opinion for the company;

dealt with by the report are in agreement with the books of account and returns; and

C
Date: 07 November, 2022

Dhaka, Bangladesh
DVC: 221 1 070392A5567837

A.K. Gulam Kibria, FCA (#392)

Engagement Partner

G. KIBRIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants
gboka

Rel: GKC|22-231N208 - Page ,ii GrK



MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 30 June 2022

Assets

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

lnvestment in Joint Venture

lnvestment in Projects

Current assets
Security Deposits (Retention Money)

Advance and Prepayments

Advance income tax net of tax provision

lnventories

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Shareholders' equity

Share capital

Share premium

Revaluation Reserve

Retained earnings

Non Controlling lnterest

Non-current liabilities

Deffered tax liability

Long term loan

Current liabilitles and provisions

Short term loan and Current portion of long-term loan

Defened LC

Unclaimed Dividend Account

Liabilities for expenses

Total liability

Total equity and liabilities

Net Assets Value per Share

Dhaka, 26th October 2022

DVC: 221 1 0703924S567837

E
4A

6

4,231,77 4,119

12,527,764,529

567,327,053

742,961,003

755,496,357

51,764,542

4,300,622,931

1.111,294,134

'17,326,865,701 15,047,411,526

4,075,655,901

10,403,929,520

567,826,1 05

806,068,568

970,370,307

49,772,694

4,252,811,37 4

1,594,580,400

7

8A

9

10

11A

6,962,138,968 7,673,603,342

24,289,004,669 22,721,014,868

12

13

14A

148

1,207,715,470

1,042,284,530

107,539,881

3,400,780,732

164,536

3,325,976

13,581 ,586,040

4,779,552,912

88,082,843

691,232

77,280,518
or( Af

5,758,485,'150 5,555,652,136

1,207,715,470

1,042,284,530

107,539,881

3,197,938,271

1 73,984

3,325,976

12,131 ,364,077

15

16

13,584,9't2,0't 5 12,1 34,690,053

to

17

18

19A

4,873,468,063

101,927 ,962

55,276,654

5,030,672,679

18,530,519,519 17,165,362,732

24,299,004,669 22,721,014,868

47.68 46.0027.2

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these flnancial statements and are to be read in con,junction therewith

.tU.x\r .pa s
LJ

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Director Managing Director

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed.

Chairperson

G

\&<

A.K, Gulam Kibria FCA, Partner (#392)

G. KIBRIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

30 JUNE 2022

Taka

DHAKARet GKC|22-231N208 Mir Akhter Hossarn Lrmrteo

30 JUNE 2021

Taka

w-+



MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 30 June 2022 Itrffi
Revenue

Cost of execution of the contract

Gross profit

General and administration expenses

Profit from operations

Non-operating income

Financial expenses

Profit before tax and WPPF

contribution to wPPF

Profit before tax from own construction business

Tax expense

Current

Defened

Total Tax expense

Profit after tax from own construction business

Profit after tax from Joint Venture

Total net profit after tax for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

Non-Controlling lnterest

Basic and Dilutive Earnings per Share

Chief Financial Officer

Dhaka, 26th October 2022

DV C. 221 1 070392AS567837

20

21

2,952,498,996
p898,046,530)

3,242,277,000

(2,306,555,858)

854,452,466

(214,596,141)

935,721,142

(198,461,469)22A

an

24

639,856,325

19,918,479

(115,9l5,371)

737,259,673

16,382,166

(425,921,01 1)

343,859,433 327,720,929

(16,554,21 1) (16,101,305)

327,305,222 311,619,523

25.1

25.2

(248,384,123\ (220,057,635)

848.3!4,123) (220,0s7,635)

26

27.14

78,921 099

27 4,876,349

353,797,447

91,561,888

367,884,649

459,445,537

353,797,447 459,446,537

797 459

2.93 3,80

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therewith

*ilil; ) Cha'irp'erson

Secretary

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed

h.Na>\r
0irector

G
A.K. Gulam Kibria FCA, Partner (#392)

G. KIBRIA & CO,

Chartered Accountants

30 JUNE 2021

Taka

353,806,895 459,472,553

DHAKA

Ref: GKC/22-23l,q/208 I'ilir Akhter Hossain Limited
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Mir Akhter Hossain Limited
Consolidated Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2022

Notes
30 JUNE 2022

Taka

30 JUNE 2021

Taka

A. Cash flows from operating activlties

Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Cash generated from operation

lncome tax deducted at source and paid

Net cash generated from operating activities

B, Cash flows from investing actlvities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

lnvestment in Joint Venture

lnvestment in FDR

lnvestment in Projects

Net cash used in investing actlv[res

C. Cash flows from financing actlvities

Total Loan net of repayment

Cash inflow for MSL Shares (NCl Portion)

lssuance of new shares through lP0
Share Premium

lnterest Paid

Dividend Paid

Netcash (used in)/from financing activlties

D, Net increase/(decrease) ln cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Unrealized FX Gain/(loss) related to Foreign Currency held

E, Opening cash and cash equivalents

F. Closing cash and cash equivalents (D+E)

Net Operating Cashflow per share (Note 27.3A)

1,417 ,922,755 203,570,371

3,227,375,345

(1 ,559,076,619)

3,610,161 649

(3,184,895,427)

1,668,298,726

{?58izqe71)

425,266,222

(221,695,851)

(667,991,303)

(2,123,835,009)

(704,500,728)

(88,034,789)

499,052 (39,900,000)

(2,791,327,259) (832,435,517)

1 ,356,306,812 922,251,036

200,000

207,715,470

1,042,284,530

(425,926,1 63)(31 5,915,371 )

(150,273,202)

890,118,238 1,746,524,874

(483,286,266) 1,117,659,728

5,1 52

476,915,5211,594,580,400

1,111,294,134 '1,594,580,400

1.69

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therewith

Chief Financial Officer

Dhaka, 26th october 2022

J
-Pra'-
Managing Director

Company Secretary

(t*
$ - \\<rrj.r
Director

OHAKA

Rel. GKCI22-231N208 [,'lir Akhter Hossarr Lim[ed
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Asat30 June2022

30 JUNE 2022

Taka

30 JUNE 2021

Taka
Assets

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

lnvestment in Joint Venture

lnvestments in Mir Securities Limited

lnvestment in Projects

Current assets
Security Deposits (Retention Money)

Advance and Prepayments

Advance rncome tax net of tax provision

lnventories

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity and liabilities

Shareholders' equity
Share capital

Share premium

Revaluation Reserve

Retained earnings

Non-current liabilitles

Deffered tax liability

Long term loan

Current liabllities and provlsions

Short term loan and Current portion of long-term loan

Deferred LC

Unclaimed Dividend Account

Liabilities for expenses

Total liability

Total equity and liabilities

Net Assets Value per Share

Chief Financial Officer

Dhaka, 26th october 2022

DVC: 221 1070392AS567837

5,127,211,526

6,896,290,774 7,603,975,4,16

24,302,728,020 22,731,186,942

5,772,470,728 5,565,858,710

3,325,976

13.581 .586.040

3,325,976

12,131,364,077
r Aon n(1 3,584,912,0'l 5 12,

4,779,552,912

88,082,843

691,232

77,018,291

4,873,468,063

101,927 ,962

55,242,154

4,945,345,277 5,030,638,179

18,530,257,292 17,165,328,232

24,302,728,020 22,731,186,942

4

b

17

7

8

I
10

11

12

IJ

14

15

16

16

17

18

19

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therewith

A,K, Gulam Kibria FCA, Partner (#392)

G. KIBRIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

\\'Nu\r .|r'^"" " I,Secretary Director Managing Director

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed.

c

4,231,545,664

12,527,764,529

79,800,000

567,327,053

4,075,655,901

10,403,929,s20

79,800,000

567,826,1 05

742,961,003

725,961,026

51,764,542

4,300,622,931

1,074,981,271

806,068,568

940,641,976

49,772,694

4,252,811,37 4

1,554.680,805

1,207,715,470

1,042,284,530

1 07,539,881

3,414,930,847

1,207 ,715,470
1,042,284,530

107,539,881

3,208.318,829

DHAKA

Ref: GKC/22-23lFJ208 Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

27.2 47.80 46,09

Notes

P---*



MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2022

]E
Revenue

Cost of execution of the contract

Gross profit

General and administration expenses

Profit from operations
Non-operating income

Financial expenses

Profit before tax and WPPF

Contribution to WPPF

Profit before tax from own construction business

Tax expense

Cunent

Defened

Total Tax expense

Profit after tax from own construction business

Profit after tax from Joint Venture

Total net profit after tax for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

Basic and Dilutive Earnings per Share

Chief Financial Officer

Dhaka, 26th October 2022

DVC: 22'1 1 070392AS567837

20

21

22

23

24

2,952,498 996

(2,098,046,s30)

3,242,277,000

(2,306,555,858)

854,452,466

\21\W,1.371

935,721,142

{188,084,890J
643,635,330

19,918,479

(4q,915,E21)

747,666,247

16,382,166

(425,921,011)

347,638,438

(16,5s4,211)

338,1 27,402

(1 6,1 01 ,305)

25.1

25.2

331,084,226

(248,384,123)

(248,384,1 23)

322,026,097

(220,057,635)

(220,057,635)

26

82,700,1 03

274,876,349

1 01,968,462

367,884,649

357,576,452 469,853,1 1 1

357,576,452 469,853,1 1 I

27.1 2.96 3.89

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in con,junction therewith.

tJ

Managing Director / Chairperson

Signed in terms of our report of even date annexed,

G

H.l\q\r
Director

A.K. Gulam Kibria FCA, Partner (#392)

G. KIBRIA & CO.

Chartered Accountants

30 JUNE 2022

Taka

30 JUNE 2021

Taka

OHAKA

Ref: GKC/22-23lN208 Mir Akhter Hossain Limited

w_



!o

:
'6

or
o

(
@NN

l=
FO\p.+,d,\CL

c--l|-.=

E

u,"

\c,
\o

I6Isrlc
,t6(E
-.FkE

o
(,
d,
.=o

c.l(\t
O6t
(Doo
oo
c
(o
c\.1

(!x(!<o

.(ll
Eo
o,(r,

c,o
o
G
oc(!
E
iI
.g
o

I,ti
2i

i
=
=o)
q)

,o
o
='-
o
.E
o(oo
oc
o
(D
(!
E
(g
o
q)
Eo
(o
6

E(J
(oc
o)o
o)

o
(E
o-
6
o,
(D

'=
(!
FE€
o
o)
oc
(,)
.E

(E
o
Eoo
O(!
e
F

o
N

=NN-
:zo
x.

Y
Io

(\I(\I
G'6t
oE
=-oo
IE
a,
G(,
a,
c
.E
(go

O i+ c?)

-OOl\ !Cr
@ r+orr, (o o
60N
rr) o(\lao L..J 6rf)
ra)

o *(')
-6Ol\^' +- --o rf,o|r) (OOOcl,N
trt d 6i(r)6

€
co-
6)
c.,rI,r{o

c,
F)q)
+o
FI
c.i
3-

ot\st
d
ts
riot\t

"., -lolls- 3-l sll
3 3l3ll
6r_ 6_1 6ll
- Nll4lllo aol(oll
- 6l6ll

E$lill
=.|;l

. _lll(o rl(\rll<r- (o-l @Jl
co s I ooll6 c6l-ll

=-l3l

Itl

i*!

EEH

€oCD6!4,orrtd6toG
-=l o e,
.GI ad dFI !+ tl)6Ar

o.t i

o
CDlr)
rrio

rsl o-
TI ..c,(!t+
Ft 6-

(\t

€6
ai
t4l
rio

d
et S
6!1 6
FI G!

6i

o
CO, lf)

$(\t-
GI+6
-:

@ttCO(\l c)o
@- *---
@ <o(oo
G6 d)N
od o e.iou.co6t

ooOF-o- +-o(o
6loxl oF-
..sl d FjFloo

q c.J

6lc!o(\
o
f-o

cf)
E'(Do=

F 39
FI iilE
rO-

b a-eE
6 Exx
P A::.:'=o)a
E i5Eh
(E *Ee(Il(oYYgl ()o-o-

o
E
E
@

=oC
o
q)

=@
a

o6ro
G{

->:'-
o
G
o
.E
o,o
Cso

co

a!
o

?s
=.9
(E
o-

o
FF

=2=tr2.2
cDo
ct, z,
O{5
-.J-o-L clt
tr b:F rXT z.*

=s5Ek*
= b; I

E'

-(Eq€ EaF(D3
E.t
E,

EI
EE
E,

E

tl ulocnEc
6-

d'fr

E
=Eo
o-
o,
IE

rt,

(!
=CLr!(t
(,
(qs
ctt



Mir Akhter Hossain Limited
Statement of cash flows

For the year ended 30 June 2022

30 JUNE 2022

Taka

30 JUNE 2021

Taka
A. Cash flows from operating activities

Cash receipts from customers

Cash paid to suppliers and employees

Cash generated from operation

lncome tax deducted at source and paid

Nel cash generated from operating actiyllles

B, Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

lnvestment in Joint Venture

lnvestment in Mir Securities Limited

lnvestment in Projects

Nel cash used rn investing activities

C, Cash flows from financing activities

Total Loan net of repayment

lssuance of new shares through IPO

Share Premium

lnterest Paid

Dividend Paid

Nel cash (used in)/from financing activities

D. Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Unrealized FX Gain/(loss) related to Foreign Cunency held

E, Opening cash and cash equivalents

F. Closing cash and cash equivalents (D+E)

Net Operating Cashflow per share (Note 27,3)

Chief Financial Otficer Managing Director

Company Secretary

Dhaka, 26th October 2022

1,421,195,032 243,670,776

3,227,375,345

(1,555,804,342)

3,610161,649

(3,144,795,022\

1,671,571,003

(250,375,971)

465,366,627

(221,695,851)

(667,676,848)

(2,123,83s,009)

(704,500,728)

(88,034,789)

(79,800,000)

(39,900,000)

1,554,680,805 476,915,521

981,271 1 805

11.77

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements and are to be read in conjunction therewith.

499,052

(2,791,012,804) (912,235,517)

1 ,356,306,812 922,251,036

207,715,470

1,042,284,530

(425,926,163)(315,915,371)

(150,273,202)

890,118,238 1,746,324,873

(479,699,534) 1,077,760,132

5,152

2.02

s' J'FsSa-^\-'
Ghairperson

\t.Nort\r
Director

DHAKA

Rel GKC|22-231N208 Mir Akhter Hossain Limited
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MIR AKHTER HOSSAIN LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the period ended 30 June 2022

1. Legal Status and Nature of the Company

1.1 Mir Akhter Hossain Limited ["MAHL"] was incorporated as Private Company Limited by shares on Juty 18, 1980 vide
registration # C-8196/35 with Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firm under the Companies act, 1913.
The company in its extra ordinary general meeting held on 3rd and 1Oth January,2017 made some amendments to

the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the company with a view to converting it into a Public Limited

company, increasing its authorized capital, decreasing the denomination of face value of shares ,complying with the

Companies Act 1994, which were approved by the Registrar of Joint Stock Companies and Firms, Dhaka. 0n
January 26,2021, the Company was listed on the Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE) and Chittagong Stock Exchange
(CSE) through lnitial Public Offering (lPO).

1 .2 The address of the corporate offlce of the company is at 430/1 , Tejgaon lndustrial Area, Dhaka-1 208.

1.3 The company owns and operates a construction business. ln addition to working under its own name, MAHL also

executes several conslruction wo* under Joint Venture agreements. The company was also involved in trading of

cigarettes. However from July 01,2017 the company has discontinued its cigarettes business as per decision of its
Board Meeting dated September 20, 2017 with retrospective effect from 01 July 2017. All inventory held for the

cigarette business were disposed in the year at book market value resulting in no gain or loss on disposal.

1.4 Descriotion of subsidiaries and associates

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed lo, or has rights to,

variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over

the entity. The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date

on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.

Mir Securities Limited

Mir Securities Limited ('MSL')was incorporated in Bangladesh on 2 March 2021 vide registration # C-169341/2021 as

a private company limited by shares under the Companies Act, 1994. The registered oflice of the Company is

situated at 430/1(1st Floor), Tejgaon l/A, Dhaka-1208. lt is a subsidiary Company of Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd that holds

99.75% ownership of the Company.

The main objective of Mir Securities Limited is to act as a member of stock exchanges, the central depository system

(CDS) companies and to carry on the business of broker, jobbers or dealers in stocks, shares, securities, bonds,

debentures etc.

2, Basis of preparatlon

2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements are individual financial statements of MAHL, and have been prepared in accordance with

lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), the Companies Act, 1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules,

1987, relevant guidelines issued by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC) , lncome Tax

Ordinance 1984, VAT and Supplementary duty Act 2012, Regulations of Dhaka and Chittagong Stock Exchange,

Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 (Amendment in 2013) anci Bangladesh Labour Rules 2015, Financial Reporting Act

20'15 and otherapplicable laws in Bangladesh, These indivdual financial statements presentthe financial position and

performance of MAHL and its investment in Joint Ventures with multiple entities.

These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis. Unless otherwise specifically mentioned,

historical cost principle has been followed forthe purpose of the financial statements.

(,
DHAKA
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2,2 Structure, content and presentation of financial statements

Being the general purpose financial statements, the presentation of these financial statements is in accordance with
the guidelines provided by IAS 1: "Presentation of Financial Statements'. A complete set of financial statements
comprises:

i) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Financial Position;

ii) consolidated and Separate Statement of Profit or Loss and Other comprehensive lncome;

iii) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Changes in Equity;

iv) Consolidated and Separate Statement of Cash Flows;

v) Notes to the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, comprising a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information to the financial statements.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries
The financial statements of subsidiary, Mir Securities Limited ('MSL') has been fully consolidated as Mir Akhter
Hossain Limited ('MAHL') directly controls more than 50% of the voting rights of MSL. The accounting policies of MSL

have been aligned with the policies adopted by Mir Akhter Hossain Limited,

(ii) Non.controlling interests
Non-controlling interest (NCl) is the equity interest in MSL not attributable to MAHL. NCI is calculated at MSL's

proporlionate share of identifiable net assets at the date of acquisition as per para 19 of IFRS 3: Busrness

Combinations, NCI is presented in the consolidated statement of financial position, separately from the equity of the

shareholders of MAHL as per paragraph 22 of IFRS 10: Conso/idated FinancialStatements.

ln accordance with paragraph 894 of IFRS 10: Consolidated Financial Statements, the Group attributes the profit or

loss and each component of the other comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling

interests even if the results in the non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

(iii) Loss of control

When MAHL loses control over il's subsidiary, it derecognises the assets and liabilities of the subsidiary and any

related NCI and other components of the equity. Any resulting gain or loss is recognised in the profit or loss. Any

interest retained in the former subsidiary is measured at fair value when control is lost.

(iv) lntragroup transactions
lntra-group balances and transactions, and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group

transactions, are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised gains arising from

transactions with equity accounted investees are eliminated against the investment to the extent of MAHL's interest in

the investee. Unrealised losses, if any, are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that

there is no evidence of impairment.

2 4 lnvestment in Joint Ventures

ln addition to the Company's own construction business, the Company will form joint ventures with other

organizations to execute customer contracts. The investment in these joint ventures are accounted for using the

equity method. Under the equity method, the investment in the joint ventures are initially recognised at cost. The

carrying amount of the investments are adjusted to recognise changes in the company's share of net assets of the

joint venture since the acquisition date.

2.5 Basis of measurement

Under the historical cosl, assets are recorded at the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the

consideration given to acquire them at the time of acquisition. Liabilities are recorded at the amount of proceeds

received in exchange for the obligation, or in some circumstances ( for example, income taxes), at the amounts of

cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liability in the normal course of business,

2.6 Functional and presentational currency

These financial statements are prepared in Bangladeshi Taka (Taka/BDT,), which is both the company's functional

and presentational cunency. All financial information has been rounded off to the nearest integer.

DHAKA
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2,7 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity with IFRS, requires management to make judgment, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenue, expense, asset and liabilities and the accompanying
disclosures including disclosures on contingent liabilities. Uncertainties about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in future periods,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected,

ln particular, information about significant areas of assumptions, estimations and judgments in applying accounting
policies that have the most significant effect on the amount recognised in the consolidated financial statements are
described in the following notes

Basis of consolidation

Basis for using Equity Method

Going Concern

IFRS 16: Leases

Depreciation and useful life duration of assets

lmpairment of Assets

Defened tax asseUliability

Provision for corporate tax

3,13 and 36 Contingent Liabilities

Measurement of Fai Value

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market observable data as far as possible.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation

techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or

liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data.

2.8 Going concern

As per IAS-1 para 25, a company is required to make assessment at the end of each year to assess its capability to

continue as a going concern. These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis, The company

has adequate resources to continue its operation for the foreseeable future. For this reason the directors continue to

adopt going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. The cunent resources and credit facilities of the

company are sufficient to meet the present requirements of its existing business.

lmpact of Covid-19 Pandemic and Russia-Ukraine War

Although, there was a good improvement of the pandemic in the country and the overall economy started ro recover,

there were significant delays in the completion of several on-going projects during the current year. As a result, there

was a significant reduction in revenue recognized by the Company in the current year, Even though, the profitability of

the Company suffered during the year for increased cost of major construction materials due to the effects of the

ongoing Russia-Ukraine War, the Company managed to earn a positive Operating Cash Flow which indicates that the

overall liquidity position of the Company is still sound. However, the Company is always monitoring the market,

industry partners and the overall economy for any potential future impact of this Russia-Ukraine War. Besides, the

management is not aware of any other material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Company's

ability to continue as going concern, which is most unlikely though yet considering overall perspectives.

23 Statement of cash flows

Statement of Cash Flows has been prepared in accordance with IAS 7: "Statement of Cash Flows" under direct

method as prescribed by the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange (BSEC) rule 1987. A reconciliation of Net

operating cashflow from operating activities under the indirect method has also been prepared in accordance with

Clause No,5(2Xe) of Notification No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158i208/Admin/81 Dated 20th June,2018 (Gazette

publication date: August 8,2018).

2,3

2.4 and 5

2.8

3.2

3.4.3

3.5

3.9,2 and 15

3.9.1 and 25

Note

Note

Note

Note

Note

Note

Note

Note

Note

DHAKA
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2.10 Materiality, aggregation and off setting

Each material item as considered by management significant, has been presented separately in the financial
statements. The Company reports separately both assets and liabilities, and income and expenses unless required by
an applicable accounting standard or offsetting reflects substance of the transaction and such offsetting is permitted

by applicable accounting standard. No amount has been set off unless the Company has legal right to set off the
amounts and intends to settle on net basis.

2,11 Reporting perlod

This financial statement of the company covers one (1 ) year from 01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022,

2.12 Compliance with Financial Reporting standards as applicable in Bangladesh for the Company

The following IFRS are applicable for the preparations of financial statements for the period under review
IAS 1 Presentation of flnancial statements

IAS 2 lnventories

IAS 7 Statement of cash flows

IAS 8 Accounting policies, changes in accounting estimates and errors

IAS 10 Events after the reporting period

IAS 12 lncome taxes

IAS 16 Property, plant & Equipment

IAS 19 Employee benefits

IAS 21 The effects ofchanges in foreign exchange rates

IAS 23 Borrowing costs

IAS 24 Related party disclosures

IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements

IAS 28 lnvestment in associates and Joint Ventures

IAS 32 Financial lnstruments: Presentation

IAS 33 Earnings per share

IAS 34 lnterim Financial Reporting

IAS 36 lmpairment of Assets

IAS 37 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

IFRS 3 Business Combinations

IFRS 7 Financial lnstruments, disclosures

IFRS I Financial lnstruments

IFRS 8 Operating Segments

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers

IFRS 16 Leases

2.13 Accrual Basis

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited prepares its financial statements, except for cash flow information, using the accrual basis

of accounting, Since the accrual basis of accounting is used, the Company recognizes items as assets, liabilities,

equity, income and expenses (the elements of financial statements) when they satisfy the definitions and recognition

criteria for those elements in the IFRS conceptual Framework.

2.14 Comparative lnformation

Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of 01 July 2020 lo 30 June 2021 in accordance with IAS 1:

Presentation of Financial Statements for all numeric information in the financial statements and also the narrative and

descriptive information where it is relevant for understanding of the cunent periods of financial statements.

2,15 Currentversus non-currentclassification

The Company presents assets and liabilities In the statement of financial position based on currenVnon-current

classification. Assets and liabilities are classified as current when they are expected to be realized, settled, sold or

consumed in a normal accounting cycle or within twelve months after the reporting period. Assets and liabilities that

are held primarily for trading are also considered current.

DHAKA
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2,16 Standards lssued but not yet etfective in Bangladesh

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance
of the Company's financial statements are disclosed below.

IFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts
ln May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 lnsurance Contracts (IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard for
insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once effective, IFRS 17 will

replace IFRS 4 lnsurance Contracts (IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods

beginning on or after 1 January 2023, with comparative figures required, This standard is not applicable to the

Company and will not be adopted,

3. Significantaccountlngpollcles

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial

statem€nts.

3.1 Shareholders' capital - paid-up capital

Paid-up capital represents the total amount of shareholders capital that has been paid in full by the ordinary

shareholders. Holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time.

3.2 Lease transactions (IFRS 16)

Starting 1st July 2019, IFRS 16 has been adopted and all leasing arrangements except those having less than 12

months of useful life and underlying asset values considered low value when new, have been capitalized as "right to

use" assets with a conesponding financial liability on the balance sheet

Leased assets are capitalized from the start date of the lease agreement at the present value of the future leased

Bayments, based on the rate of interest entered in the asset master data, Low value and short term leases

(<'12months) have been excluded from the recognition requirements and expensed in operating profit as rental costs.

Lease reassessment and lease modification to increase/decrease the value of an asset depending on a change in

scope of lease agreement can be made if necessary.

The asset is written off on a straighUine basis over the tenure of the lease agreements. Hence, the useful life of any

lease assets depends on the number of periods the assets can be used. The useful life of such assets are dependent

on individual agreement and can vary from one agreement to another

For the Cunent Year, the Company entered into (or had already existing) two (2) lease agreements. These lease

agreements were rental leases for the Company's two office premises. For both of these leases, both the lessee and

lessor have the right to terminate the lease without permission from the other party and also without any penalty being

imposed by the other party. Therefore in line with Paragraph B34 of IFRS 16, both of these leases are not considered

to be enforceable.

Since these agreements are not considered enforceable, they do not meet the deflnition ofa contract under IFRS 16

and thus does not create a rightof-use Asset. Hence, MAHL has recognized the rent paid for their premises in line

with their previous practice under IAS 17 which is recognizing a rental expense in the statement of profit or loss.

Since MAHL's rental agreements did not meet the definition of IFRS 16 right-of-use asset, there was no impact on the

financial statements due to the adoption of this accounting standard.

DHAKA
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3,3 Employee benefits:

Employees of the company are entitled to get the following benefits from the company:

a. Provident Fund

MAHL maintains a defined contribution plan (Employee Provident Fund) for its eligible permanent employees. The

eligibility is determined according to the terms and conditions set forth in the trust deed and rules. The company
subscribes to a contributory provident fund for its permanent employees which is administered by a Board of

Trustees, As per IAS 19, in a defined contribution plan, the entity pays fixed contributions into a fund but has no legal

or constructive obligation to make further payments. Obligations for contribution to defined contribution plans are

recognised as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the period during which related services are rendered

by employees,

b, Workers' Profit Participation Fund (WPPF)

ln accordance with IAS 19, an entity shall recognize the expected cost of profit-sharing and bonus payments if the

entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments and reliable measurement of the

obligation can be made. The company makes the provision of WPPF @ 5% of its net profit before tax after charging

such expense as WPPF in accordance with Bangladesh Labour Act 2006 as amended in 201 3.

The Company does not have any policy to provide Defined Benefit Employment Benefits and therefore the Company

does not maintain a Gratuity Fund. Consequently there is no provision or gratuity expenses recognized by the

Company.

3.4 Property, plant and equipment

3.4.1 Recognltion and measurement

Prope(y, plant and equipment (PPE) is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits

associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if

any. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the assets, bringing the assets to the

location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management.

3,4.2 Subseguent costs

The costs of replacing part of an item of prope(y, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the

item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the company and its costs

can be measured reliably, The costs of the day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in

the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as incurred,

3.4.3 Depreclatlon

Depreciation is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a reducing balance

method over the estimated useful lives of each item of property, plant and equipment. Depreciation of an asset begins

when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in

the manner intended by management, Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is

classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale) in accordance with IFRS 5

and the date that the asset is derecognised or sold. No depreciation is charged on leasehold land and capital work-in-

progress. Depreciation is calculated and charged on all other property, plant and equipment at the following rates on

cost or valuation, considering the estimated useful lives of the assets:

30-Jun-22 30-Jun-21

Land

Plant and machinery

Spare parts Office equipment

Furniture fixtures and fittings

Shuttering Material

Motor Vehicle

Warehouse & Workshop (MCW)

1Yo

15.00%

10,00%

10.00%

20.00%

20.00%

10.00%

DHAKA
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Gain or loss on sale of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as per provision of IAS 16: "Property, plant and equipment*.

Depreciation has been allocated to the different projects on the basis of uses of the assets .

MAHL recognizes two kinds of spare parts: parts which are considered long-term assets and pa(s which are
considered inventory. ln addition, there are some spare parts which are used over multiple years and they are used
on the field to service other capital equipment, These parts are used over multiple years, are of very high value and
are held for use in the production of goods or service. Since these items are large, high value and used over multiple
years, they meet the deflnition of property, plant and equipmenl, as per paragraph 6 of IAS 16 and thus are presented

as fixed assets and not inventory

3,4,4 Revaluation of Property Plant and Equipment

When using the revaluation model, as per IAS 16: Properly, Plant and Equipment paragraph 31 , after recognition as

an asset, an item of prope(y, plant and equipment whose fair value shall be measured reliably can be carried at a

revalued amount. lf PPE and revaluations shall be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount
does not differ materially from that which would be determined using fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The company revalued its land by an independent professional firm namely Nurul Faruk Hasan & Co., Chartered

Accountants, creating a revaluation surplus of Taka 11,08,65,857, The valuation report has been prepared and

treated in accordance with lnternational Accounting Standards (lAS) and lnternational Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRS) and other applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. The revaluation report was prepared based on the

financial position of June 30, 2017.

The increase in the carrying amount of revalued assets is recognized in the separate component of equity under the

head of revaluation surplus. However, the increase is recognized in profit or loss account to the extent that it reverses

a revaluation decrease of the same assets previously recognized in profit or loss account. There were no income

recognized for the current for any such reversals. Since the asset which was revalued (Land & Land Developments) is

not depreciated, there is no transfer of revaluation surplus to equity done by the Company.

3.5 lmpairment

3.5 1 Recognition

The carrying value of the company's assets, other than inventories, are reviewed at each statement of financial

position date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. lf any such indication exists, the asset's

recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of the asset or its

cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount. lmpairment losses, if any, are recognised in the statement of

profit or loss and other comprehensive income, For the assets that have indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount

is estimated at each statement of financial position date.

No indication of impairment was observed in the period ended 30 June 2022.

3,5,2 Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of net selling price and value in use. The estimated future cash

flows are discounted to their present value using discount rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time

value of money and the dsk specific to the asset. For an asset that does not generate significantly independent cash

inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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3.5,3 Reyersal of impairment

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for an asset shall be reversed if, and only if, there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amounl does not exceed the carrying

amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years.

There was no reversal of impairment in the period ended 30 June 2022

3.6 Capitalwork.in.progress

Capital work-in-progress represents the cost incurred for acquisition and/or construction of items of property, plant

and equipment that were not ready for use at the year end and these are stated at cost..

3.7 Financiallnstruments

As per IFRS-7 "Financial lnstruments: Disclosure" all financial instruments are presented in a way so that users are

enabled to evaluate the significance of financial instruments for the Company and nature and extent of risks arising

from financial instruments to which the entity is exposed during the period and how the entity manages those risks.

/nveslments in fixed deposits

lnvestments in fixed deposits are shown in the financial statements at its cost and interest income is recognised as

they become due.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, balances and deposits with licensed financial institutions that are

readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subjecl to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Advances

Advances with no stated interest are measured at the original amount if the effect of discounting is immaterial

MAHL has adopted IFRS 9 for the current period as this standard has become effective. ln previous periods, the

entity used IAS/BAS 39 to account for their financial instruments. The adoption of IFRS 9 did not have any impact on

the Company's financial statements as there were no changes in the Company's classification of the existing financial

instruments (all remained measured at cost). As per IFRS 9, a financial instrument is measured at cost if they are

held with a business model whose objective is hold assets and collect contractual cashflows and the contractual

terms give rise to cash flows on specific dates which are only payments of principle and insterest on the outstanding

principle. These two criteria's are met by all three instruments above.

3.8 Borrowing costs

As per requirement of IAS 23 Borrowing Costs, directly attributable borrowing costs are capitalised during

construction period for all qualifying assets. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period

of time to get ready for its intended use or sale. The bonowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,

construction or production of a qualifying asset are those borrowing costs that would have been avoided if the

expenditure on the qualifying asset had not been made. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in

the period in which they are incurred,
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3.9 Taxation

Tax on the statement of comprehensive income for the year comprises current and defened tax. lncome tax is
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

3 9.1 Current tax

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the statement offinancial position date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

3.9.2 Deferred tax

Defened tax is provided on temponary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial

reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes, The following temporary differences are not provided

for: the initial recognition of goodwill; the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor

taxable profit other than in a business combination, and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the

extent that they will probably not reverse in the foreseeable future. The amount of deferred tax provided is based on

the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, using tax rates

enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Defened tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a
legal enforceable right to offset cunent tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same

tax authority on the same taxable entity.

A defened tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available

against which the temporary difference can be utilised. Defened tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and

are reduced to the extent that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

3.10 lnventories

3,10.1 Stocks

lnventories represents construction material and supplies i.e., rod, cement, sand , stone, tiles, bricks, pipes, electrical

goods etc. awaiting use in the production process . Therefore, the company complies with the principles of IAS-2 '
lnventories" and recognise inventories at cost using weighted average cost formula and measure the same at

reporting date at lower of cost and net realisable value.

3.10.2 Stores

Spare parts and miscellaneous items are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value

3,10.3 Contract Asset - Work in Progress & Contract Llabilities

Contract Asset: Work-in -process represents performance obligation completed by MAHL but for which consideration

is not yet due (since the customer has not been billed). ln accordance with paragraph 107 of IFRS 15, this is recorded

as an asset. IFRS 15 allows a Company to use alternative description to represent Contract Asset in the statement of

financial position (paragraph 109). Therefore contract asset is presented as "Work in Progress" in the statement of

financial position.

Contract liabilities represent payments received for consideration not yet completed. The Company only bills their

clients for work completed after a survey is completed by the Customer to confirm the stage of work completion. The

Company only recognizes revenue after this process if completed and only then the Company will bill their customers.

Consequently, no payment is ever received before an obligation ls completed and hence there is no Contract

Liabilities on the financial statements

DHAKA
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MAHL does not operate or use sales agents who receive compensation in the form of commission from the Company,

Rather than agents, the Company has human resources engaged in business development. The compensation of

these employees are not directly related to acquisition of any single contracts but rather incuned periodically in the

form salary and wages. Therefore the Company does not record any contract assets in related to customer contracts

regarding costs incurred to obtain contracts which is In line with IFRS 15 Paragraph 91.



3.1 1 Trade and other receivables

Contracts receivable represent the amounts billed on completed construction contracts . ln accordance with IFRS 15,

the receivable amount represents MAHL's right to consideration that is unconditional. The consideration is

unconditional due to the fact that the service has been completed and the customer has been billed for the services
provided. Contract receivable asset should be distinguished from Work in Process which represents contracts assets
where MAHL has completed their performance obligation but payment is not yet due (since the customer has not

been billed yet). There are further details in Contract Asset: Work in progress is Note 3.10.3.

The Company uses the allowance method of recognizing uncollectible accounts receivable. The allowance method

recognizes bad debt expense as a percentage of accounts receivable based on a review of the individual accounts
outstanding and the Company's prior history of uncollectible accounts receivable. And in the opinion of management,

all outstanding receivables al the year end are considered fully collectible.

3.12 Foreign currencytransactions

The financial statements are presented in BDT which is company's functional currency. Transactions in foreign

currencies are recorded in the books at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transaction. Monetary assets

and liabilities in foreign currencies at the date of statements of financial position are translated into taka at the

exchange rate prevailing at that date.Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary items measured at

fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date when the fairvalue was determined.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at the end of the

repofing period are recognised in profit or loss a per IAS-21 the Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.

3.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assels

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the company has a legal or constructive

obligation as a result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle

the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

C o nti n ge n t I i ab I I itles

Contingent liabilities is a possible obligation that arises from the past events and whose existence will be confirmed

only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or

a present obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because:

a) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation;

0r

b) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably,

Contingent Assets

A Contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from the past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by

the occurrence or non-occurrence of more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Contingent liabilities and assets are not recognised in the statement of financial position of the Company. They are

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.
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3.14 Revenue recognition

Under IFRS 15, revenue is measured under a s step process. The 5 step process includes:
1. ldentification of contract

2. ldentification of performance obligation

3. Determination of transaction price

4. Allocation of transaction price to performance obligation

5. Satisfaction of performance obligation

Through a 5 step process, the Company identifies a contract with a customer and the contract details the
consideration amount that is to be received from the cuslomer in return for distinct performance obligations that is to

be performed by the Company. The performance of these obligations are fulfilled through the transfer of goods and
services to the customer.

As MAHL operates in the construction business, fulfilment of their contracts involve providing goods and services of
varied nature in a given contract. However the nature of these services is such that they are not distinct individually
but rather cumulatively makes up one single distinct deliverable (since the customer cannot enjoy the benefits from

those goods or services on their own). Therefore, the consideratlon to has been agreed in the contract is attributed to
the that one deliverable rather than allocating them to individual goods or services since they are not distinct from one

another.

The performance obligation related to MAHL's construction contracts are satislied over-time. MAHL uses the output
method to determine the entity's progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation over time. MAHL

uses the output method because it provides a true and fair presentation of the value to the customer of the goods and

services transferred to date relative to the remaining goods and services promised under the contract.

3.15 Contract Cost

Contract costs are costs that are incremental to obtaining a contract with a customer or costs that are directly related

to fulfilling a specifled customer (Fulfillment cost). Contract cost is capitalised as an asset and amortised in a way that

is consistent with the transfer of the related goods and service.

3.16 lnterest expenses

lnterest expense comprises interest expense on overdraft, import loan, demand loan, finance lease and term loan, All

interest expenses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income when it accrues.

lnterest expenses is allocated to the different projects and joint ventures on the basis of loan used,

3.17 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per sharo

The company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the

profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary

shares outstanding at the year end as per IAS-33 " earnings per share",

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share are required to be calculated for the year as there was no scope for dilution during the

year under review.

3.18 Related party transaction

Parties are considered to be related if one of the party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant

influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, The company carried out transactions in the

ordinary course of business on an arms length basis at commercial rates with its related parties.

3.19 Events afterthe reporting date

Events after the reporting date that provide additional information about the company's position at the reporting date

are reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting date that are not adjusting events are disclosed in

the notes when material.

3.20 General

Previous year's numerical information, narratives and descriptive information in the financial statements and

accompanying notes have been disclosed and reanangedheclassified wherever considered necessary to conform to

current yea/s presentation,
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As at
30 JUNE 2022

As at
30 JUNE 2021

4A Consolidated Property, plant and equipment

This ls made as follows:

Balance of MAHL

Balance of Mir Securities Ltd

Closing Balance

5. lnvestment in Joint Venture

This amount represents the company's lnvestment in the project

with foreign collaboration

4,231,545,664

228,455

4,075,655,901

_!,?31,1J!J1e 4,075,655,901

12,527,764,529 __1q4!,93!,9!_

Name of the Joint Venture

HALLA-MAH.SEOKWANG JV

Samwhan-Mir Akhter JV

Mir Akhter-Komaihaltec JV

lVlir Akhter-WMCG JV

Hego-Mir Akhter JV

Halla-Mir Akhter JV

Mir Akhter-CAMCE JV

CRCC.MAHL JV

Nature of Business

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

Construction

12,527,764,529 10,403,929,520

HALLA.MAH.SEOKWANG:

Three entities viz; Halla Corporation, Korea, Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd,, Bangladesh and Seokwang Development Co.

Ltd. formed a Joint Venture Undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract to perform the construction work of

Cox's Bazar Airport under the Civil Aviation Authority of Bangladesh,

Samwhan-Mir Akhter JV:

Two entities viz; Samwhan Corporation and Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd., Bangladesh formed a Joint Venture Unde(aking

(Partnership at will) based on a contract for improvement of road from Dulla Mari road to Tangail (22.4 Km.) from 2-

Lane to 4-lane including structures and performance based maintenance works on improved 4-lane road from Dulla

Mari Road to Tangail (22.4 Km.)and Construction of 6 (Six) Nos (G-14) Storied Residential Building (100 Sft. Each

unit) including civil, lnternal & external sanitary & water supply and electrical works, supply & lnstallation of lifl,
Generator, electric substation and fire fighting system etc in Block-A of Dhaka Elevated Express way (DEE) project,

Mir Akhter-Komaihaltec JV:

Two entities viz; Komaihaltec Ltd. and Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. formed a Joint Venture Undertaking (Partnership at will)

based on a contract No. PW-02 for Construction of 16(Sixteen) Nos. Bridge at Rajshahi Zone of Western Bangladesh

Bridge improvement project,

Mir Akhter-WMCG JV

Two entities viz; Mir Akhter Hossain ltd. And Wuhan Municipal Construction Group (WMCG) formed a Joint Venture

undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contracl for the construction of 7.35 km road from Rajghat to Mohoriguna

in Moheshkhali upazilla of Coxsbazar.

12,527,764,529 1

826,411,005

3,697,683,883

1,495,387,754

1,089,206,728

3,561,571,172

1,047,078,594

810,425,394

796,016,542

3,004,590,686

429,336,740

871 ,928,159

1,047,597,383

2,993,132,828

715,862,328

545,464,854
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As at
30 JUNE 2022

As at
30 JUNE 2021

Hego-Mir Akhter JV

Two entities vizi Henan Highway Engineering Group Co. Ltd., Republic of China and Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd. formed a
Joint Venture Unde(aking (Partnership atwill) based on a contract for part-1: lmprovement of road from west side of
Bangabandhu Bridge to Hatikumrul intersection (19.80 km)to a 4-Lane highway alongwith slow moving vehicular traffic
(SMVT) lane on both sides & structures and part-2: performance based maintaince works on improved 4-lane highway

from west side of Bangabandhu Bridge to Hatikumrul intersection (19.80 km) to a 4-Lane highway alongwith slow

moving vehicular traffic (SMVT) lane on both sides & structures under the SASEC road connectivity project-ll:

lmprovement of Elenga-Hatikumrul-Rangpur road to a 4Jane highway, ICB No.: SASEC-Il/lCB/MP-1A/VP 06 (LOT 2).

Halla-Mir Akhter JV

Two entities viz; HALLA Corporation , Republic of Korea and Mir Akhter Hossain Ltd., Bangladesh formed a Joint

Venture Undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract for rehabilitation of road from Badarkhali naval police

station to Yunuskhali (Ch. 30+ 339 to Ch. 36+123) including new 680 m kohelia bridge, strengthening of existing

runway and taxiway at OSMANI INTERNATIOANL AIRPORT , SYLHET and construction of 595m long PC box grider

bridge box over Bakkhali river at Kusturi Ghat under sadar upazila of Cox'sbazar District.

CRCC.MAHL JV

Two entities viz; Mir Akhter Hossain ltd. And China Railway Construction Bridge Engineering Bureau Group Co. Ltd.

formed a Joint Venture undertaking (Partnership at will) based on a contract for the construction of Broad Gauge Rail

Line from Madhukhali to Magura Via Kamarkhali.

MIR AKHTER.CAMCE JV

Two entities viz; Mir Akhter Hossain ltd. And China CAMC Engineering Co. Ltd. formed a Joint Venture undertaking

(Partnership at will) based on a contract for the Strengthening of Existing Runway and Taxiway at Shah Amanat

lnternational Airport, Chittagang,

Legal Status of all Joint Ventures:

The legal status of the joint venture is a Partnership at will because it was created only to carry out a particular

construction projects as per contract, but in accordance with the provision of Section - 2 (20) BB of lncome Tax

Ordinance 1984 its status is a Company though it does not have any consequential effect under this Ordinance.

6, lnvestment in Projects

Balance as at 01 July

Add: Addition during the year

Less: Refund during the year

Balance as at 30 June

567,826,1 05

20,058

527,926,1 05

39,900,000

567,846,'163

519,1 10

567,826,1 o5

567,826,1 05
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As at
30 JUNE 2022

As al
30 JUNE 2021

7. Security Deposits (Retention Money)

Security Deposlts

Balance as at 01 July

Add: Security deposits retained by the employer

Less: Refund during the period

Balance as at 30 June

Prepayments

VAT refund:

Opening Balance

Add: Additions during the year

Less: Refund during the year:

Closing Balance

8, Advance & Prepayments

Advances to employees against salary

Advances to suppliers

Advances to Mir Securities Ltd

8A. Consolidated Advance & Prepayments

Advance & Prepayments - MAHL

Advance & Prepayments - MSL

Less: lntercompany Elimination

9, Advance lncome tax

Balance as at 01 July

AIT on lmport

AIT on Contract revenue

AIT on IPO & STD accounts

AIT on the registration of Car and Vehicle

Less: Provision for tax

Balance as at 30 June

10. lnventories

Stocks

Work-in-process

Raw materials (Note-10.1)

Goods-in-transit

___12!,99!,013_ _Z9l!9!l!!-

18,970,330 '18,970,330

1 8,970,330 18,970,330

742,961,003 806,068,568

725,96't,026 940,641,976

755,496,351 970,370,307

_gl,!64,&__9il2f84_

4,252,811,374

787,098,238

127,127,863
(190,235,428)

713,959,073

149,673,865

(76,534,700)

2,871,510

722,328,847

760,669

2,226,787

938,143,520

271,669

725,961,026

30,296,000
(760,669)

940,641,976

30,000,000

(271,669)

7

48,134,478

26,696,435

186,201 ,958

1 ,638,216

49,772,694

39,078,640

199,465,926

1,991,848

300,'148,665 269,830,329

2,349,519,583

1,887,571,784

63,531,564

'1,740,101,845

1,99s,339,200

517,370,329
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As at
30 JUNE 2022

As at
30 JUNE 2021

11, Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand (Note- 11,3)

Cash at banks

Cash at bank ( Note-1 1 ,1 )

Cheque in hand ( Note-11,2)

11.1 Cash at bank

Cash at bank MAHL

Cash at bank IPO account (BDT account)

Cash at bank IPO account (USD converted to BDT)

11,2 Cheque ln hand

Project Name

Rajshahi New Road(RNR)

Reliance lnsurance Limited

RHD Sylhet Road Project, SRP

Bangabandhu Bridge,RHD(BBTL)

Chitagang Development Authority, BAKALIA

Jamuna River Dredging Works, JRDW

Munshiganj Bridge, MSBP

11.3 Cash in hand

Project

Head Office

Uttara Residential Apartment Project

OSJI JOINT VENTURE

Reliance lnsurance Limited

RHD, Shylhet Road Project(SRP)

Jamuna River Dredging Works, JRDW

Munshiganj Bridge, MSBP

Kushtia Shilpakala Academy (KSA)

Dhaka Airport (DAP)

Bangabandhu Bridge,RHD (BBTL)

RCCDRF

Jamuna Rail Bridge Project, JRBP

Chitagang Development Authority, BAKALIA

Chevron Bangladesh (BD)Block Twelve Ltd.

Patengha Container Terminal Ground lmprovement (PCT)

11A Consolidated Cash and cash equivalents

cash at bank MAHL ( Note-11,1)

Cheque in hand ( Note-'l 1.2)

Cash in hand (Note- 11.3)

Cash at bank - MSL

6,731,436 14,430,642

1,008,947,403

59,302,433

I ,170,208,269

370,041,894

1,068,249,935 1,540,250,163

_1 .07 4pu .n L__l!!$!9,!!!_

,403 1.'t

__!9J94$L_lZU{,991_

6,731,436 14,430,642

1,111,294J3+ 1

321,832,071

687,062,782

52,550

401,869,703

767,713,712

624,854

12,520,723

30,707,895

16,073,815

159,341,312

37,779,354

32,774,867

61 ,749,1 64

78,397,1 97

180,772

366,250

63,250

788,970

815,740

815,360

544,1 80

872,910

31,824

625,370

912,580

714,230

1,468,103

623,540

578,410

859,632

2,655,820

3,655,120

825,630

531,470

2,920,417

312,500

1,008,947,403

59,302,433

6,731,436

36,312,863

1,170,208,269

370,041,894

14,430,642

39,899,595

DHAKA
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As at
30 JUNE 2022

As at
30 JUNE 202t

12, Share capital

Authorised
200,000,000 Ordinary shares ofTk 10 each

lssued, subscribed and paid.up
120,771,547 Ordinary shares of Tk 10 each

Shareholding position of the company

2,000,000,000

1 ,207 ,715,470
1,20a15At0 1,207,715,470

Nominal value (Taka) Percentage of hold!1g (%)

Sponsors/Directors

lnstitutions

General Public

30.06.2022

586,670,000

52,414,040

568,631,430

30-06.2021

586,670,000

47,106,540

573,938,930

30.06.2022

48.58%

4.34o/o

47.08y0

30.06.2021

48.58%

3.90%

47.520k

't,207,715,470 1,291,113fi!_ 100.00% 100,00%

0n 26 January 2021, the Company raised total proceeds of BDT 1,250,000,000 through lnitial Public Offering (lP0).
Overall the Company issued 20,771,547 shares with nominal value of BDT 10.00 per share. The Company recognized

an increase in Share Capital of BDT 207 ,715,470 and share premium of BDT 1 ,042,284,530.

13. RevaluationReserve

Revaluation reserve

Less: Deferred tax liabilities on revaluation reserve

14. Retained earnings

Balance as at 01 July

Profit transfened from statement of comprehensive income

Cash Dividend Declared

Transferred from,ioint venture business

Balance as at 30 June

14.A Consolidated Retained earnings

Balance as at 01 July

Profit transfened from MAHL Business (MAHL)

Less: Loss in MSL attributed to MAHL

Transfened from,joint venture business

Less: Cash Dividend paid

Balance as at 30 June

14.B Non-Controlling lnterest in MSL

Balance as at 01 July

NCI Portion of MSL Common Share Equity

NCI Portion of MSL loss for the year

1 07,539,881 1 07,539,881

1 10,865,857

(3,325,976)

1 10,865,857

(3,325,976)

3,208,318,829

82,700,1 03

(1 50,964,434)

274,876,349

3,197,938,271

82,700,103
(3,769,557)

78,930,546

274,876,349
(150,964,434)

3,40q,7q0_232

3,414,930,847 __3&r_q&9_

2,738,465,717

101 ,968,462

367,884,649

2,738,465,717

101 ,968,462
(10,380,558)

91,587,904

367,884,649

__1J!1,93!lll_

1 73,984

(9,448)

200,000
(26,016)

1 73,984

715
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As at
30 JUNE 2022

As at
30 JUNE 2O2I

15 Deferred tax liabilities

The company has recognised defened tax liabilities on revaluation surplus complying with the lnternational Accounting
Standard (lAS-12),

There are no other sources of deductible/taxable temporary differences for MAHL. Historically, the Company's
depreciation expense for accounting purposes have been in line with depreciation expense recorded for tax purposes

leading to no temporary differences. MAHL's joint ventures which are recorded using the equity method also does not

lead to any taxable/deductible temporary difference since the Joint Ventures are taxed as a separate entity, All

distribution of profits paid to MAHL are done on an after-tax basis and therefore there is no instance where a temporary
difference can arise

Revaluation surplus

Tax rate, as per Sectlon 53H of the lncome Tax )rdinance 1984 read

with Rule 17ll

Deferred tax liabilities

1 10,865,857

3Yo

1 10,865,857

3o/o

3,325,976 3,325,976

16. Loan from Financial lnstitutions

Social lslami Bank Ltd.

Shahjalal lslami Bank Ltd.

Dhaka Bank Ltd.

United Commercial Bank Limited

Jamuna Bank Limited

Uttara Bank Limited

BRAC Bank Limited

Bank Asia Ltd.

Standard Bank Limited

Al-Arafah lslami Bank Ltd.

Midland Bank Ltd.

Modhumoti Bank Ltd.

Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

The City Bank Ltd.

Prime Bank Ltd.

NRB Commercial Bank Ltd.

Dutch Bangla Bank Limited

Less: Short term loan and Current portion of long-term loan

Long term loan 13,581,586,040 12,131,364,077

16.1 Social lslami Bank Ltd,

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from The Social lslami Bank Limited on various dates

for executing the projects and importing the equipment's and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the

range of 7.00%-9.00% p.a,

16.2 ShahjalallslamlBankLtd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from The Shahjalal lslami Bank Limited on various

dates for executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at

the range of 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

16.3 Dhaka Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from The Dhaka Bank Limited on various dates for

executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range

of 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

1,550,180,s05

1,035,307,96'1

2,467,292,353

920,784,356

572,822,671

510,151,402

1,927,238,604

499,551,640

561,610,810

2,122,216,147

508,998,886

293,865,620

1 ,672,911 ,236

400,941,538

510,092,817

994,726,379

1,812,446,027

1 ,510,777,691

1 ,581,546,494

1,926,868,864

2,276,685,362

665,740,893

627,218,368

805,606,087

931,984,568

1 ,204,325,190

368,700,492

719,819,347

1,58'1,827,928

941,630,556

1,862,100,300

DHAKA
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As at
30 JUNE 2022

As at
30 JUNE 2021

16.4 United Commercial Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from The United Commercial Bank Limited on various
dates for executing the pro,jects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at
the range of 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

16.5 Jamuna Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Jamuna Bank Limited on various dates for
executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range
of 7.000/o-9.00%p.a.

16.6 Uttara Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Uttara Bank Limited on various dates for
executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at 7.00%-

9.00% p.a.

16.7 BRAC Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from BRAC Bank Limited on various dates for
executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range

of 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

16.8 Bank Asia Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Bank Asia Limited on various dates for

executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range

of 7.000/o-9.00% p.a.

16.9 Standard Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Standard Bank Limited on various dates for

executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range

of 7.0070-9.00% p.a.

16.10 Al-Arafah lslami Bank Limited

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Al-Arafah lslami Bank Limited on various dates

for executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the

range of 7.000/o-9.00% p.a.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Midland Bank Ltd. on various dates for

executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range

of 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

16.'12 Modhumoti Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Modhumoti Bank Ltd. on various dates for

executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range

of 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

DHAKA
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16,13 Mutual Trust Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Mutual Trust Bank Ltd. on various dates for
executing the proiects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range
of 7.00%-9.000/o p.a.

16,14 The City Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from the City Bank Ltd. on various dates for executing
the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%.
9.00% p.a.

16.15 Prime Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Prime Bank Ltd. on various dates for executing
the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range of 7.00%-
9.00% p.a.

16.16 NRB Commercial Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from NRB Commercial Bank Ltd. on various dates for
executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range

of 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

't6.17 Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd.

This represents the amount outstanding against term loans taken from Dutch Bangla Bank Ltd. on various dates for
executing the projects and importing the equipments and others. These loans are repayable with interest at the range

of 7.00%-9.00% p.a.

16.18 Securlty

(a) Personal guarantee of all the Directors including Managing Director of the company.
(b) Existing charge on immoveable property, moveable property, book debts and floating assets (presentand future) of

the company duly registered with RJSC&F.

(c) Mode wise post dated MICR cheques for each limit separately in favor of the bank to be obtained through an

undertaking to the effect that these have been provided by the company for repayment purpose.

(d) Fresh usual charge documents (mode wise) duly stamped and filled in.

17. Deferred LC

SL Item Name BDT Value

1 Stone 3,354,000

2 Spare Parts for Shantui Bulldozer 2.111,804

J PC Strand 14,148,400

4 Stone 38,413,000

5 Expansion Joint 4,597,184

b Expansion Joint 5,930,215

7 Stone 8,537,881

8 Stone 10.990,358

Total 88,082,843

18, Unclaimed Dividend Account

This is made as follows:

0pening Balance

Add: Cash Dividend for the year ended 30.06.2021

Less: Dividend paid during the year

Closlng Balance

150,964,434

(150.273.202\

As at
30 JUNE 2022

As at
30 JUNE 2021

DHAKA

Rel: GKCI22-231N208

691,232

Mir Akhter Hossain Limited



'19. Liabilities for expenses

Salary & Allowances

Audit fees

Legal Fees

Directo/s Remuneration

Telephone & Fax Bill

Electrical Bill

Repair & Maintenance (Machinery)

Repair & Maintenance (CAR)

Repair & Maintenance (Equipment)

Office Rent

GAS & WASA BiII

Payable to Suppliers

Stationery

Newspaper & Poshge

Office Maintenance Charges

Fuel & Lubricant

PF Contribution

Contribution to WPPF

19A. Consolidated Liabilities for expenses

Lrabilities for expenses - MAHL

Liabilities for expenses - MSL

Less: lntercompany Elimination

77,018,291

1,022,896
(760,669)

'13,345,900

350,000

140,000

560,000

12,380

101 ,600

65,700

63,000

16,320

1,835,177

37,200

10,065,713

15,200

1,040

27,1 90

15,120

310,200

28,280,414

154

55,242,1U
306,1 69

(271,669)

77,280,51 8 _!!tz!f!!_

As at
30 JUNE 2022

As at
30 JUNE 2021

47,380,537

350,000

140,000

770,000

34,465

109,386

48,520

51,796

14,113

1,590,569

104,245

9,113,331

11 ,846

900

14,889

I 31,508

597,974

DHAI(A
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For the year ended

30 JUNE 2022

For the year ended

30 JUNE 2021
20. Revenue

# Project Name (Detatts of Revenue ts shown tn Annerure. l)
1 RHD Sylhet Road Project(SRP)

2 Chevron Bangladesh (BD)Block Twetve Ltd.

3 Kushtia Shilpakala Academy (KSA)

4 KanchpurBridge.Narayongong (KMG)/OSJt

5 Patengha Container Terminal Ground lmprovement (PCT)

6 Rajshahi New Road(RNR)

7 Uttara Construction Building Project(UTTARA)

8 Nator Baghatipara Bridge, NBB

9 Chitagang DevelopmentAuthority,BAKAL|A

10 Relaince lnsurance Ltd.

11 Dredging Work Madaripur, DWM

12 Bangabandhu Bridge,RHD (BBTL)

13 Dhaka Airport (DAP)

14 LGED, Gopalganj, BAPARD (Kotalipara)

15 Multarpur Bridge, AMBP

16 Jamuna River Dredging Works, JRDW

17 Jamuna Rail Bridge Project, JRBP

18 Munshiganj Bridge, MSBP

19 RCCDRF

Total Revenue

21, Cost of execution of the contract

0pening stock of construction material

Development and material expense (Note 21 .1)

Cost of construction material available during the period

Closing stock of construction material

Cost of construction material consumed during the period

Direct expenses (Note 21.2)

Total cost of construction in process

Opening Work in Process

Closing Work in Process

Total Cost of execution of the contract

21.1 Development and material expense

Earth filling and development work

Material cost

Total Development and materlal expenses

2,952,498,996 _3,2!2/J1&9_

2,098,046,530 2,306,555,858

2,965,210

1,669,901,727

3,852,400

1,708,125,172

1,672,866,937 1,711,977.572

288,461,417

76,788,488

1 06,1 20,200

482,275,806

21,503,612

20,000,000

36,753,049

93,771,055

127,994,272

418,475,772

458,596,261

514,088,973

307,670,092

1,057,260,712

75,109,472

52,608,262

165,267,024

31 1 ,907,9'18

241,277 ,132
163,615

65,564,000

135,821,135

1,245,526

141 ,628,399

359,525,326

64,046,421

89,821,505

337,821,160

48,182,487

95,026,905

1,995,339,200

1,672,866,937

3,668,206,f 37

1,887,571,784

1,780,634,353

926,829,916

2,707,464,269

1,740,101,845

2,349,519.583

711

1,832,486,556

3,544,464,128

1,549,1 24,928

2,489,524,827

1,557,132,876

1.740.101,845

DHAKA
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For the year ended

30 JUNE 2022

For the year ended

21.2 Direct expenses

Project Expenses

Caniage lnward

Fuel and Lubricant

Bank charge/others charge by the Employer

Salary & Wages

VAT (Note-2'1.2.1)

Depreciation (Note44)

Total Direct Expenses

21.2.1. VAT

VAT Deducted from Consrudon Business

VAT Deducted from lmport Stags

Total VAT

22. General and admlnistration expenses

1 32,456,800

98,810,312

__231,25Lil2_

1,744,820

826,320

93,675,71 I
5,1 38,739

420,428,480

251,756,412

1 66,829,408

1 78,1 96,533

73,559,879

2

Staff Salary & Allowance

Board Meeting Fee

0irectors Remuneration

Advertisement

Printing & Stationery

Tender, Prequalifi cation/Enlistment

Ofice Rent

Fees & Charges

Traveling & Tour

Telephone & Fax Charge

Postage & Telegram

Fuel & Lubricant

Repair & Maintenance (Machinery)

Repair & Maintenance (CAR)

Newspaper & Periodicals

Electrical Charge

Conveyance

Entertainment

Uniform & Liveries

Security Services

lnsurancr & Premium

Donation & Subscriptjonzakat

Business Promotion

Head Oflice maintenance

Medical expenses

Repair & Maintenance (Equipment)

GAS & WASA B|II

Site Office Maintenance

Audit fee

Legal Fee

Total General and adminlstratlon expenses

1 59,686,821

440,000

7,840,000

369,400

442,150

206,31 0

20,824,091

588,250

201,480

21 3,580

32,470

1 ,491 ,108

631,412

612,'145

10,800

1,495,474

278,950

31 4,566

60,1 70

244J30
9,833,444

180,770

68,320

178,666

487,520

1 69,360

1,406,960

358,790

470,000

1.680.000

21 0,817,137

210,817,137

3,779,005

21 4,596,1 41

188,054,895

10,406,574

't98,461,469

22A. Consolldated General and admlnlstration expenses

General & administration expense - MAHL

General & administration expense . MSL

Total Consolldated General and admlnistration expenses

23. Non-operatlngincome

lnterest lncome (STD Bank lnterest)

lnterest lncome (lPO Bank lnterest)
153,953

1A,228.213

11

1,521,350

477,140

86,618,360

12,215J20

478,297,628

231,267 ,112

142,485,915

92,000

9,240,000

88,720

182,400

369,230

21,848,579

478,350

148,570

389,230

28,110

1,672,600

789,254

756,220

12,480

1 ,219,466

218,150

255,680

55,470

212,590

3,614,118

141,200

71,420

228,570

433,690

220,100

446,463

326,320

350,000

ooo
,1

1

DHAKA
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For the year ended

30 JUNE 2022

For the year ended

30 JUNE 2021

24. Financlal expenses

lnterest Expense

Foreign Exchange (gain)/loss . Realized

Foreign Exchange (gain)/loss - Unrealized

Bank Charges

Less: lnteresl charged to Jolnt Venture Partners:

a) HALLA. MAH . SEOKWANG JOINT VENTURE

b) SAMWHAN-M|R AKHTER JOTNT VENTURE

c) MIR AKHTER-KOMAIHALTEC JV

d) Mh Akhter-WMCG JV

e) Hego-Mir /*hter JV

f) Halla-Mir Akhter JV
g) CRCC-MAHLJV

h) MTRAKHTER-CAMCEJV

Financial expenses charged

25. lncome tax expense

Current tax (note-2s.'1 )

Deferred tax (note 25.2)

25.1 Current tax

1) Construction business lncome (as per 82C inmme)

2) lnterest incom6 on STD account

3) lnterest income on lP0 account

4) Excess taxes related to vehicle registration

Total cunont tax expense

Net Profit before tax

lncome Tax Rate - 20.070 [A]
lncomo Tax deducted at Source [B]
Minimum tax U/S 82C of lT Ordinance 1984 - 0.6% of Revenue [C]

lncome Tax Provision for the year: Higher of [A, B & C]

Depreciation for tax (as per 3rd Schedule

Depreciation as per Accounting

Temporary difference;

1,544,087,768

3,658,036

7,436,945

585,803

1,555,768,552

___lll,g!dt_ 425,921,0l1

248,384,123 220,057,635

248,384,1 ?X 220,057,635

238,544,566

58,400

3,925,296

5.855.861

248,384,123

21 2,898,393

34,639

3,651,348

3.473.25s

220,057,635

The current tax expense is calculated as per Section 82C of the lncome Tax Ordinance '1984 which described the minimum tax to be paid by the

Company. Therefore no further efiective tax rate reconciliation is necessary,

As per Paragraph 81 (C) of IAS 'l 2 lncome Taxes an explanation of the relationship between tax expense (income) and accounting profit is

provided below:

331.084.226 322,026,097

66,21 6,845

238,544,566

17.714.994

--- r3!r3119!-

116,433,206

1 16,433,206

72,455,872

2'12,898,393

19.453.662

21 2,898,393

1 66,829,408

1 66,829,408

25.2 Deferred tax

There were no temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for

taxation purposes. Therefore the company did not record any defened tax liabilities or assets aparl ftom the revaluation reserve that is described

in Note no-'15. Moreover, lhe company always pay the minimum tax under section 82C of lT0 1984 from the deduction by the customer at source.

Hence lhere is no possibility of future taxable profit to adjust if any defened tax liability/asset arising in the future.

Details ofthe carrying value offixed assets (both tax and accounting valus) are provided below:

Since there is no temporary difference between the depreciation charged for tax and accounting purposes, there is no taxable temporary

ditference in the carrying value of the fixed assets for tax and accounting purposes. There is one source of temporary difference which is caused

by the revaluatlon of land which has aheady been recognized by the Company (BDT 3,325,S76). Since there is no change in the value of land

(both tax and accounting), there is defened tax expense recognized for land in lhe cunent year.

756

1,476,762,418

431,904

1 02,970

31 9,596,943

1 93,51 9,094

1 56,488,257

282,448J54

54,1 94,336
,1

1 1

271,269,195

10,428,677

115,109,101

98,663,782

392,120,371

81 ,432,994

DHAKA
Ref: GKC22-23/M08 Mlr AkhEr Hossarn Lrmrted



For the year ended

30 JUNE 2022

For the year ended

30 JUNE 2021

26. Profit after tax from Joinl Venture

Name of the Joint Venture

HALLA.MAH.SEOKWANG JV

Samwhan-Mir Akhter JV

Mir Akhter-Komaihaltec JV

Mir Akhter-WMCG JV

Hego-Mir Akhter JV

Halla-Mh Akhter JV

Mir Akhter-CAMCE JV

CRCC.MAHL JV

Consolidated Net profit for the year

Number of shares

Consolidated Rostated Baslc earnlngs per share (EPS)

Net Assets Value per Share

Net Assets (with revaluation)

Number of sharos

NEt Asset value per share (NAVPS)

Net Assets (with revaluation)

Number of shares

Restated Net Asset value per share (NAVPS)

Net Assets (without revaluation)

Number of shares

Net Asset value per share (NAVPS)

Net Assets (without revaluation)

Number of shares

Restated Net Asset value per share (NAVPS)

Consolldated Net Assets Value per Share

Net Assets (with revaluation)

Number of shares

Consolldated Net Asset value per share (NAVPS)

Net Assets (with revaluation)

Number of shares

Restatsd Consolldated Net Asset valuo per sharo (NAVPS)

Revenue

503,818,722

2,505,588,1 26

1 ,644,162,088

1,320,501,293

2,469,246,735

1,865,206,572

Profit after tax
(PAT)

Share of MAHL in

JV's profit FYE

30 June 2022

47,720,664

72,1 66,81 0

19,398,212

20,367,717

70,81 0,720

27,415,173

Share of MAHL in

JVs proflt FYE

30 June 2021

469,853,1 1 1

109.231 ,799

4.30

49,528,453

73,598,926

1 9,594,1 54

20,783,385

72,446,808

27,974,667

17

10,787,189,859 281,270,324 274,876,349

27. Price Sensltlve lnformation:

27.1 Earnlngs Per Share:

Net prollt for the year

Number of shares

Baslc earnings per share (EPS)

Net profit for the year

Number of shares

Restated Baslc earnlngs per share (EPS)

Diluted earnlngs per share :

No diluted EPS is calculated for the period as there was no scope for dilution during this period.

27.1A Consolldated Earnlngs Per Sharel

Consolidated Net profit for the year

Number of shares

Consolidated Baslc earnlngs per share (EPS)

357,576,452

120,771 ,547

2.96

357,576,452

120,771,547

2.96

469,853,1 1 1

120,771,547

3.89

353,797,447

120.771,547

459,446,537

120,771.547

3.802.93

27.2

27.24

47.80

47

-J
f--EI,$034-fl
I i2o ,77 I ,547 |

J

5,664,930,847

120,771,547

5,758,485,1 50

120,771,547

47.68

5,758,485,1 50

120.771,547

5,458,318,829

120,771,547

45.20

5,555,652,1 36

120,771.547

3,486,473

1 13,882,829

5,635,22s

46,568,319

35,281,127

I 34,008,865

8,503,616

1 771

353,797,447

11

459,446,537

,771

10

1 1

5,565,858,71

771

5,458,31

5,555,652,

1

DHAKA
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For the year ended

30 JUNE 2022

For the year ended

30 JUNE 2021

Net Assets (without revaluation)

Number of shares

Consolidated Net Asset value per share (NAVpS)

Net Assets (without revaluation)

Number of shares

Restated Consolidated Net Asset value par share (NAVPS)

27.3 Net 0perating Cashflow per share
Net 0perating Cashflow

Number of shares

Net Operating Cashflow per share (N0CFPS)

Net Operating Cashflow

Number of shares

Restated Net operating Cashflow per share (N0CFPS)

27.3A Consolldated Net Operatlng Cashflow per share

Net Operating Cashflow

Number of shares

Consolidated Net operatlng Cashflow per share (NOCFPS)

Net Operating Cashf,ow

Number of shares

Restated Consolldated Net operatlng Cashflow per share (NOCFPS)

27.4 Reconciliation of net operatlng cash flow:

Net profit beforo tax

Adjustment for: Profit affer tax from Joint venture

lnterest expenses

lncome tax paid

DepreciaUon

lnventories

Security Deposits

Advances and prepayments

Defened LC

Liabilities for expenses

Changes ln:

27,4A Reconcillatlon of net operatlng consolidated cash flow:

Net proflt bsforo tax

Adjustment lor: Prolit aff6r tax from Joint venture

lnterest expenses

lncome tax paid

DepreciaUon

lnvenlories

Security Deposits

Advances and prepayments

Defened LC

Liabilities for expenses

5,448,112,255

1 09.23 1 .799

49.88

45.11

243,670,776

1 09.23 1 .739

2.23

243,670,776

120.771.547

2.02

1,417 ,9?2,755
120.771,547

11.7 4 '1.86

322,026,097

367,884,649

425,921,011

(221,69s,8s1 )
469,291,198

(726,866,688)

(73,1 39,165)

11,247,528

(247,527,710)

(83,470,292)

'1.42't .195.032 243.670,776

327,305,222

274,876,349

315,915,37't

(250,375,971 )

51 1,787,084

(47,81 1,558)

63,1 07,565

21 4,959,950

(1 3,845,1 19)

22.003.863

31 1 ,619,523
367,884,649

425,921,011

(221 ,695,851 )

469,291,198

(726,866,688)

(73,1 39,1 65)

(1 8,480,803)

(247,527,710\

(83.435.793)

Changes in

_1,!JI_WJ.j_ ___33.r.9, 3l_

Capltal Expendlture Commltment

There was no capital expendituro commitment of the company as on 30th June,2022.

Payment ol Forelgn Cunency

The company incuc loreign cunenry expenses through lmport of Machinery & sparE parls of the machinery and import of Raw Materials.

No other expense lncluding consultancy fee, royalty, technical expgrl and professional advisory fee, interest, etc. was incuned or pald in foreign

currencies except as stated abovo.

28.

29.

5,448,112

1

1,417,922, 203,570,371

,771

274,876,349

315,915,371

(250,375,971 )

51 1,787,084

(47,811 ,s58)

63,1 07,s65

(13,84s,1

21

OHAKA
Ref: GKC22-23r'l208 Mlr Akhler Hossarn Limited



For the year anded

30 JUNE 2022

30. Forelgn Exchange Earned

Company has no foreign cunency income during the year except tumover of Joinl Venture Partnership which has been disclosed in their
respective separate accounts.

No other income including consultancy fee, royalty, technical expert and professional advisory fee, interest, etc. was received in foreign cunencies
except as slated above.

Commisslon, Brokerage or Dlscount agalnst sale3

No commission was incuned or paid to distributors, agents and no brokerage or discounts were incuned or pald against sales during the year

Segment Reportlng

The Company operates under one slngle business and geographic segment. As a result, separate segment reporting is not necessary.

Related party transactlons (as per lAS.24)

31

32.

33.

For the year ended

30 JUNE 2021

Balance

560,000

s60,059

79,800,000

271,669

Name of partles Relatlonship Purpose Balance
Directors Remuneration Dhector Salary and Festival Bonus 560,000

Mlr Telecom Ltd. Common Directorship Rental Expenses 560,059

Mir Securities Limited Subsidiary
lnvestment 79,800,000
Cunent Balance 760,669

34

Details of

Closinq Balance

560.000

560,059

79,800,000

760,669

Disclosure as of schedule of the act,-l 994

Total

5,600,000

2,240,000

7,840,000

ln addition, as per requhements of Paragraph 17 of IAS 24, the Company provided compensation to key management personnel which includes

Chief Financial Officer

3l.lune 2022 3l"lune 2021

Key Management Compensation (excluding oirecton) 27,'111,781 '11,739,710

Period of payments to Directors from 01 July 2021 to 30 June 2022. The above directors of he company were not paid other than the above

remuneration.

a. Expenses reimbursed to the managing agent- Nil

b. Commission or olher remuneration payable separately to a managing agent or his associates- Nil

c. Commisslon received or receivable by the managing agent or his associates of buying agent of other concems in respect of contracts entered

into such with the company - Nil

d. The money value of lhe contacts for the sale or purchase of goods and malerials or supply of services, entered into by the company with the

managing agent or his associates during the financial year- Nil.

e. Any other perquisites or benefits in cash or in kind stating -Nil

f. Other allowances and commission including commission-Nil

Attondance status ol Board Meetlng of Dkectors

During the period from 01.07.21 to 30.06.2022 there were 5 (four) Board meeting were held. The attendance stalus of all the meeting ls as follows:

Name of parties opsnlng Balance Addltlon Ad.iustments

Directors Remuneration 560,000 7,840,000 17,840.000)

Mh Telecom Ltd. 560,0s9 6,720,710 (6.720.710)

79,800,000
Mir Securities Limited

271,669 489,000

Name of the 0irectors Posltion Rem u neration Bonus

Mir Nasir Hossain Manaoinq Director 4,800,000 800,000

Mr. Shama€-zaheer Director & COO 1,920,000 320,000

Total

st Name of 0lrectors Posltion Meetlnq Held Attended

1 Mir Nasir hossain Manaqinq oirector 5 5

2 Mrs, Sohela hossain Director 5 5

3 Mrs, Mahbuba Hossain Director 5 5

4 Mr. Shama-e-zaheer Director and C00 5 5

5 Md Farid Uddin lndependent Director A 5

6 A.K.M Faizur Rahman lndependent Director 5 5

7 Prof. Dr. Muhammad lndependent Director 5 5

8 Prof. Nausheen Rahman lndependent Director 5

DHAKARel. GKCD2-23|N208



For the year ended

30 JUNE 2022

For the year ended

30 JUNE 2021

36.

35 Status of income tax assEssment

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

There is a contingent liability of Tk. 77,90,736 in respect of tax claim in the assessment yeat 2012-13. This matter has been appealed to he
honourable High Court and is still pending.

Number of employees engaged

Total number of employees having annual salary of BDT 36,000 or above each was 2085 as at 30 June 2022 and 1 967 as at 30 June 202 1

Events after reporting date

There is no adjusting and non-adjusting post balance sheet event of such importance, non disclosure or recognition of which would affect the

ability of the users of the financial statemenb to make proper evaluatron and decisions.

Details of Lease Agreement:

The company does not have any asseb or liabilites under finance lease agreemenb. The company's operatjons rent heir facilities under a non-

controlling operatjng lease. The total lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2022 was TK. 20,824,09'l (also included in Note 22).

40. Operating Debt

( I ) Debt considered good in respect of which the company is fully secured :

The debtors occuned in the ordinary course of business are considered good and secured.

(ll) Debt considered good for which the company hold no security other than the debto6 personal security

There is no such debt in his respect as on 30 June' 2022.

(lll) Oebt considered doubtful or bad

The company does not make any provision for doubtful debb as on 30 June'2022, because of Ure fact hat sales/export are being made on regular

basis with fixed maturity dates.

(lV) Debt due by directorc or other officers of the company

There is no such debt in this respect as on 30 June 2022.

M Debt due by/from Common Management

The company has no receivable from sister companies under common management. For more details related to this receivable, refer to Note 33

"Related Party Transactions'.

41 Financial Risk Management

The Company is exposed b risks of varying degrees of significance hat could afiecl ib ability to achieve its sfategic ob,eclives. The main

objectives of he Company's risk management process are to ensure that nsks are properly identified and he capihl base is adequate in relation

to fiese risks.

The Company is exposed through iB operalions to the following financial nsks:

A. lnterest rate Risk

B. Cunency Risk

A. lnterest Rate Risk

The Company's exposure to he risk of changes in interest rates relates primarity to he Company's loans payable. An increase of 1% in he
average interest rate for he Company would result in approximately additional expenses of BDT 176,466,726 in he cunent year.

B. Currency Risk

The Company's cash flows are impacted by cunency movemenb as a significant portion of he Company's raw matenals are purchased in US

dollars. An increase of BDT 1 and BDT 2 in the US dollar to BDT exchange rate would have resulted in an estimated decrease to net income of

approximately BDT 7,1'14,995 and BDT '14,229,989 respectively in the cunent year.

42. 0ate of Authorization:

The Board of Directors have authorized these financial statemenb on 26.10.2022.

37.

38.

39.

lncome year Assessment year Present status
2020-21 2021-22 Assessment is under process.

2419-24 2020-21 Assessment completed and settled.

20'18-'19 201 9-20 Assessment completed and setUed.

2017-18 201 8-1 I Assessment completed and setted.

2016-'17 2017-18 Assessment completed and setted.

DHAKA
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